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| S. Con. Res. 27

Monday, Januury 28, 1946,
Conzress of the United States,
Joint Committee on the Inveatigation

of Pearl Harbor Attack,

Washington, D. C,

The Joint Committee met, pursuant to ad journment, at
10:00 A.M., in the Caucus Roem (room 518), Senate Office
Bullding, Senator Alben W, Barkley (chairman), presiding.

Present: Senators Barkley (chairman), George, Lucas,

Ferguson and Brewster,

Representatives Cooper (vice chairman), Clark, Murphy,

Gearhart and Keefs.
Also present: Seth W, Richardson, General Counsel:
Samuel H. Kaufman, Associate General Counsel, and John E.

|

| Masten, of counsel, for the Joint Committee.




Shack

fls 3N

Shef

10
11
12
13

14

9 T 'NOLONIHSYM "INVd ¥ OdYM

15

17

20

23

24

23

8709
Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

The Vice Chairman: The committee will please come to
order,

I might state that Senator Barkley had to go to the
White House this morning to attend the usual Monday morning
conference. He will be in a little later, We will proceed.

Does counsel have anything before the next witness
1s calledg?

Mr. Richardson: No.

-

The Vice Chairman: The counsel will then call the
next witness,

Mr. Richardson: Mr, Chairman, I desire to present
to you for examination, Captain Zachariss.

The Vice Chairmen: Will you please come forward,
Captain Zachariass., Will you please be sworn,

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN ELLIS M. ZACHARIAS
(United States Navy)

(Captain Zacharais was duly sworn by the Vice Chairman.)

Mr. Richardson: Captain, how old are you?

Captain Zacharias: I am 56 years old,

My. Richardson: How long have you bgen in the Navy?

Capfﬁin Zacherias: I have completed Ovep 37 years in
the Naval service.

Mr. Richardson: Were you a graduate of Annapolis?

Captain Zacharias: T wes.
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Mr. Richardson: What class?
Captain Zachariss: Class of 1912,

Mr, Richardson: Now, will you detail to the committee

in a general way, what your Naval experience has been

since?

Captaln Zacharias: As I have said, I have completed
over 37 years in the Naval service, I served in or operated
with all types of ships. I served aboard ship in all de-
partments as head of the department.

I commanded destroyers, a heavy cruiser, and a battle-
ship.

All of my shore duty with the exception of one year

the senior course at.the Naval War College, all of my work

has been in Intelligence on shore duty. That included three
and one-half years in Japan studying the language and the
people; one tour in crypt-analytic work; two tours of about
two and one-half years each as head of the Far Eastern
Division of Naval Intelligence; one tour of about two and
one-half years as District Intelligence Officer of the

1lth Naval District with headquarters at San Diego, Californis;
and between my two war c¢rulses, I hav§ served one year as

Deputy Director of Naval Intelligence., That gives a total

of about 12 years actually in Intelligence work on shore.
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

At sea, my spare time was devoted to study and
matiérs relating to intelligence, and while at sea I
actually participated in certain counter-espionage acti-
vities, and this gave me a direct and indirectconnection
with intelligence over a period of 25 years.

During the war, I had the good fortune to command

two capital ships.

Mr. Richardson: Which war?

Captain Zacharlas: The recent war. One of those was
the heavy cruiser Salt Lake City, and the other was the
battleship New Mexico. Both of these ships participated
in many of the operations successfully in the Pacific and
both of them are still afloat.

My most recent duty was that of conducting a psycho-~
logical warfare campaign against the Japanese high command,
which had for its objective the unconditional surrender of
the Japanese without the necessity of a forced invasion
of the Japanese main islands,

Mr, Richardson: Now, just before you go into that,
did this Intelligence work of yours, Captain, and your life
in Japan, give you a Japanese acquaintance?

Captailn Zachariss: It gave me an opportunity to make

a very wilde acquaintance in Jipan, and I was fortunate in

mowing intimately, many of the Japanese who in the last
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

war became the Japanese High Command.

Mr. Richardson: Did you learn the language?

Captalin Zacharias: I did.

Mr. Richardson: Do you speak 1t fluently?

Captain Zacharias: I speak it very fluently.

M;q Richardson: And 1t was that fact, plus your
Intelligence experience that brought the assignment to you
that you were about to relate when I interrupted you?

Captain Zacharias: That 1s correct.

D A L P PO B EE - e SR ‘trﬁﬁz.:..‘*ﬂﬁvﬁg. ﬂ*m‘fﬁ :W,E‘B TN B R




shack (2) am
fcllows
Yook

G
o
7
8
0
10

-3

2 i)

@)

@

N o

=

r

; 13

[+ ]

—

2 44

-4

0

z

5 LAn

N

i

Mr. Richardson

Witness Zacharias Questions by:

Mr. Richardson: Now will you proceed?

Captain Zacharias: I think that just about concluded
my work, except I was about to say that this objective,
which was the unconditional surrender of Japan without the
nacessity of a forced invasion of the Japanese main islands,
there was an indication of completion of that on the 25th
of July, 1945, in a broadcast by an official spokesman of
“he Japanes Government direct to me, and, as we know, the
3ituation eventuated on the 15th of Aupust, 1945.

Mr. Richardson: Now did your experience with the Navy
wake you into Hawailan waters?

Captain Zacharias: It did quite often.
Mr. Righardson: And were you familiar with Hawaii and
the general conditions and set-up in Hawaii?

Captain Zacharias: 1 was.
Mr. Richardson: With the character of the people therec
and the Japanese element involved in the population?

Captain Zacharias: I was, both the second generation
Japanese, that is Americans of Japanese extraction, and'alao
vhe first generation of Japanese who were enemy aliens after
the war began.

Mr. Richardson: During 1941 were you in service in

the Pacific?

Cantain Zacharias -

I was in command of the heavy cruiser

W2
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| Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

2 SALT LAKE CITY.
Mr. Richardson: And was that a part of the Pacific Fleet?

®
w

4 Captain Zacharias: It was.
f

5 Mr. Richardson: Then you were stationed, a portion of

6 the time at least, at Pearl Harbor?

7 Captain Zacherias: I was.
8 Mr. Richardson: Are you acquainted with Admiral Kimmel?
6 Captain Zacharias: I am, sir.
10 Mr. Richardson: And with his Chief of Staff, Admiral
: 11 || Smith?
o
; 12 Captain Zacharias: I an.
: 13 I Mr. Richardson: It was brought to the attention of
E 14 l the committee, Captain, that a conversation occurred between
E 15 I you and Admiral Kimmel during 1941 in which it 1is reported
) 168 I reference was made to the probability, possibility, likelihocci
17 ' of a Japanese surprise attack on Pearl Har‘bor.
18 | Now I would like to ask you whether any such conversa-
19 II “ion occurred, where 1t occurred, when it occurred, and who
20 was present.
21 Captain Zacharias: I think it will add something to
22 the conversation by indicating the reasons for the conver-
23 sation.
24 Mr. Richardson: Was there such & conversation?
25 Captain Zacharias: There vas _such & conversafion.

T R A e A T S0 T e (e
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Mr. Richardson: When did i1t take place about?

Captain Zacharias: It took place between March 26 and

l March 31; 19”'1-
{

;L Mr. Richardson: Where was 1t?
Captain Zacherias: In the office of the Commander in
Chier', United 3tates Fleet, Admiral Kimmel.

Mr. Richardson: At Pearl Harbor?

Captain Zacharias: At Pearl Harbor.

| Mr. Richardson: Who was present at the conversation? |

Captain Zacharias: Admirel Kimmel and his Chief of E
| Staff, then Captain W. W. Smith, now Vice Admiral Smith. | i
Mr. Rlichardson: 'They were old acquaintances of yours? C
| Captain Zacharias: I had known tnsm.both previous1y.

Mr. Richardson: Now 1f you will proceed.

Caﬁtain Zacharlas:; As I indicated, it will have some

bearing to tell the reasons why I went over to see Admiral

Kimmel on this occasion. On the 8th of February, 1941, I

had a long conversation with Admiral Nomura in San Francisco.

- s i e w ——w -

He was then enroute to Washington, D. C. as Apbassador.
The Vice Chairman: From Japan?

Captain Zacharias: From Japan.

Mr. Richardson: Was he one of the Ambassadors who

|
| thereafter conducted, in part, the negotiations that took
I

| Place with secretary Hull?




(3) 5

S O NOLDHINGYM ""INYd § QHYMN

10

7

18

190

=0

6716

Witness Zacharilas Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Captain Zacharias:; He was.

Mr. Richardson: Proceed.

Caﬁtain zacharias: I had indicated previously to
Admiral Richardson that I proposed to have such a conver-
sation with Admiral Nomura when he came through san Francisco,
ana Admiral' Richardson expressed a desire to have a copy of
the report which he knew I would submit after such a conver-
sation, and for that reason, after Admiral Richardson was
relieved on the first of February 1941 by Aamiral Kimmel,

I sent to Admiral Kimmel on the 1llth of February, 1941, in
& letter to Admiral Kimmel, a copy of the report on this
conference with Admiral Nomura that 1 had sent to Admiral
Stark.

When I arrived in Pearl Harbor with my ahip*after an
overhaul period on the West Coast I took the first opportunity
to see Admiral Kimmel, and 1t occurred between the dates
that I gave. |

Mr. Richardson: Now why did you want to see Admiral
Kimmel?

Captain Zacharias: I ﬁa.nted to see Admiral Kimmel to
find out if he had received the report, or whether or not
this report of the conversation with Admiral Nomura had

come to his attention. In addition to that I wanted to

tell Admiral Kimmel of an incident which occurred on the

— S S AT AL T G T BB g Ty Ty R S S e S .
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- Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

1oth of October, 1940, which had & bearing on future events
as 1 saw them approaching.

Incidentally, I think what I am about to relate was
referred to as having caused Admiral Richardson to take
his Fleet out on a wild goose chase. I would like to clarify
ﬁhat point now by seying that this incident had no effect,
as far as I could see, on influencing Admiral Richardson in
any decision that he was to make as a result of it, which
you will see from the incident itself.

On October 16, 1940, as District Intelligence Officer
at San Diego, I received a report from an Intelligence Reserve
Off'icer at the border, Tia Juena, or at San Jacinto opposite
Tia Juana in Mexico, that he had something of the most vital
lmportance and if I could not come down myaelf he requested
that 1 send one of my best Investigators. I could not 2o
myself' at that time, therefore 1 did select my most competent
Investigator to go down and find out what this was.

When he arrived this Reserve Officer related to him
Information that had just come from an Informant in Mexico
which stated that a certain Japanese -~ who, incidentally,
w;a on our No. 1 suspect 1ist -- had stated that on the
following day, the 17th of October 1940, the Japénese were

going to bomb four battleships. He had all the detalls,

- that it would be done by a forece of 12 nlpnes divided into
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

four groups, one of whom in each group was to be a suicide
plane and dive down the stack of each ship, and the other
two would drop their bombs and get away, if possible.

When this report came -to me I took it in to the Commandant
of the District, and similtaneously I learned that Admiral
Richardson had arrived on the West Coast, at San Pedro,
with three battleships and a heavy cruiser, indicating the
four ships in this picture. |

. Richardson: Where is San Pedro?

Ceptain Zacharias: s&n Pedro i1s the seaport of Los
Angeles.

We notified Admiral Richardson that there was something
of importance and requested that he remain on board while
1 come up by plane, which I did. I went abocrd, related
the story to Admiral Richardscn, and he said, "Are there
any planes in this vicinity which might carry out such
an attack?" I informed him that we coﬁld not assure him
that there were not planes in Mexico, and further that there
had been surreptitious activities along the coast by the
Japanese vessels that we knew of, but we were not certain
that there were not planes in Mexico with which the Japanese
could carry out such an attack.

Admirel Richardson considered that and then said, "We

cannot ignore this." And I said, "Admire,

I think you ere
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

quite right." He said, "I will alert my anti-aircraft
batteries, and when you return to San Diego you get in
touch with Captain MeCain,"who was then the Cormanding
Officer at the Naval Air Station at San Diego -~ "and tell
him to be on the alert." I did that. 1 understand that
the following morning Admiral Richardson sailed from San
Pedro for San Francisco, where he was goling anyhow, and
possibly left a little before the time of his scheduled
departure.

I told Agmiral Kimmel that full situation.
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Mr. Richardson: Did you see Admiral Kimmel then at
the place you mentioned earlier in your testimony?

Captain Zacharias: I did. As indicated, Admiral Kimmel
then called in Captain Smith, and I proceeded to relate
the circumstances of my interview with Admiral Nomura. He
informed me he had received a copy of my report sent to
Admiral Stark, and then I proceeded to tell him of this
incident on the 16th of October, 1940. From that he went
into a discussion of the general Japanese situation, the
possibllities of what might occur in the future, Japanese
attitudes, and the prospects of this situation being liqui-
dated.

Mr, Richardson: What do you mean by that, "liquidated"?

Captain Zachariasy The situation which then existed
between Japan and the United States,for which Admiral Nomira
had come over to this country to handle if possible, I

Mr. Richardson: By the word "liquidated" you mean
settled?

Captaiﬁ Zacharlias: Settled, right.

Mr. Richardson: Go ahead.

Captain Zacharias: In the course of our discussions,
Admiral Kimmel asked me if the situation became extreme
what I thought would occur. And this point is very important,

because I think of & misunderstanding that has been created
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

by something which has been said here asbout the date
December 7 having been the date which I predicted.

First I would like to say that December 7 1is a
synonym for Pearl Harbor particularly in the memorandum
which I later submitted to Admiral Draemel for Admiral
Nimitz,.

This’ conversation with Admiral Kimmel was nine months
before FPearl IHarbor, and I don't think there is any pro-
fession which would attempt to predict nine months sghead
the exact day that something would occur. I told Admiral
Kimmel in this conversation that if the situation became
such that Japan decided that they must go to war with
us, that it would begin with an air attack on our fleet
on a week-end and probably & Sunday morning; that attack
would be for the purpose of disabling four battleships.

Mr. Richardson: Why did you mention four battleships
rather than three or five or seven?

Captain Zacharias: Four battleships was a number that
I had determined in my own mind as the number that the
Japanese felt they would have to reduce our fleet in
order to prevent effective interference with any southern
movement that they might want to make after declaring war

with us. I will go into more dectail on that later.

Admirel Kimmel then asked me how I thought they would
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

effect such an attack. I said there are two methods,
the least likely of which would be o bring in seaplanes,
surreptituous;y aboard merchant vesaeia, and land them
in the lea of some of our islands that were sparsely
populated and then on a selected day, weather permitting,
they could make such an attack.

He asked how that ecould be brevented. I sald that
could be prevented effectively by declaring a defensive
Seéa area around the Hawaiian Islands, in which case you
notify all nations of the world and require all merchant
vessels coming into that area to proceed through a speci-
fied point at which place we could conduct inapections}
That would preclude ény surreptitious entrance end prevent
such a contingency of an attack by that method.

However, I emphasized that the most probable method
of attack would be by aircraft carriers supported by
appropriate ships; that such an attack would come in un-
doubtedly from the northern because that was the prevalling
winds in the Hawaiian Islands; they would come in and launch
their attack downwind, because of their concern over the
PoOssible loss of a single capital ship and for that reason
after launching their planes, the ships and the force which

brought the planes to launch them would retreat as quickly

88 possible directly upwind in order to escape any damage
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Witness Zacharias " Questions by: Mr, Richardaon

which they felt might come. .

Mr. Richardson: 'Wa; there discussion as to where
this supposed expedition would start from?

Captain Zacharias: There was not.

I would like to indicate at this point that although
this conversation was nine months prior to the actual
attack on Peari Harbor, it lasted for about an hour and a
half, and concerned something in which the Commander in
Chief of the Pacific Fleet would be vitally interested.
However, I realize thaot Admiral Kimmel was a vefy'busy
man, that I was only one of hundreds to whom he talked,
and 1t was quite possible that he could not remember the
details of my conversation,

However, his Chief of Staff, then Captaln Smith, was
present throughout the entire conversation, and I am sure
that he remembers the details of that conversation, because

he has discussed those details subsequent to the event,

and for a considerable period after Pearl Harbor occurred.

Mr. Richardson: Why did you think'thefattack would
come on Sunday morning?

Captain Zacharias: I think it has been clearly indi-
cated that the Japmese knew of our every movement in and

out of Pearl Haerbor, the situation existing in Hawaii prior
to the attack on December 7. They well knew that on Sundy
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morning everyone took advantage of the lack of drills to
be excused from réporting in on Sunday morning. lWe call
it being excused from Sunday morning quarters.

S0 that they would not have to report on that day.
That applies to officers and men, and particularly to those
who have families in Hewalil, in Honolulu.

Mr. Richardson: Well --

Captain Zacharias: I might add theres that Sunday
morning 1s a time when everyone is enjoying their leisure

and it 1s significant that 8 o'clock in the morning,

which wvas approximately the time of the attack, at 8 ofclock.

That 1s the time when the watches change, when men are
relleving others who have been on watch, and there 1s &
certain amount of confusion existing at that time in the
turnbvers which take place.

Mr. Richardson: You spoke of Japanese knowledge in
Hawaill. Was it a matter, Captain, of common knowledge in
the Navy that there was present in Howall a 1a£ge number
of Japanese agents?

Ceptain Zacharias: It was. In my conversations, and
I must ;ay'that I kept 1n constant touch with not only the
fleet intelligence officer, but also with the district
intelligence officers,_because I hed a hend in setting up

that organization beginning with my arrival there November
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Witness Zacharias

Questions by: Mr. Richardson

13, 1940, Therefore, I had a direct interest in that
organization and what they were accomplishing., It was

believed that there existed in Hawaii at least a thousand
enemy agents.,

Mr. Richardson: Well, now, do you know of anyvhere
that you have served, where the operations of a military
force of elther the Army or the Navy was subject to as
concentrated as espionage as our establishment in Hawali?

Captain Zacharias: I do not, and there is no ;ther-
place comparable except in Panama where there was an unusu-

ally large group of Japanese barber shops before Pearl

Harbor.

Mr. Richardson: Now, in this conversation, Captain,
that you had with Admiral XKimmel, “were the details of
the reasons why you thought there would be an attack dis~-
cussed between you?

Ceptain Zacharias: Only in a general way, but I think
the reasons why I thought there would be an attack on the
Fleet if the situation became such that war between Japan
and the United State s was imminex;t, I think thet those
reasons have a great bearing on everything that is before
this committee.

Mp. EHchardson: Was there any discussion on the part

of Admirel Kimmel in ggreement with or opposidon to your
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Questions by: Mr. Richardson

views?

. Captain Zacharias: Yes, sir. After outlining to
him the probabilities and the methods by which the Japanese
would make their attacks, in the second instance that of
én attack by aircraft carriers, Admiral Kimmel asked me
how I thought it could be prevented, and I stated that
the only possible way of doing it would be to have a dally
patrol out to cover the approach of the Japanese, and this
patrol must go out at least 500 miles,

To that Admiral Kimmel replied, "Well, we have neither
the personnel nor the materiel with which to carry out such
a patrol,” and I replied to him, "Well, Admiral, you better
get them because that is what is coming.”

Mr. Richardéon: Do you, as a Naval man know of any
other way in whih such an attack could be effecti%ely
guarded agelinst than through distant patrol and discovery
of the attacking planes either in carriers, or in the air,
and an attack on those planes by fighter planes?

Captain Zacharias: Only by learning of the approach
of such a force and intercepting it with the fleet.

Mr. Richardson: Where were you at the timo'of the
attack?

Captain Zacharias: I was in command of the Salt Lake
City which was then 200 miles west of Oahu returding to
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Pearl Harbor. |

Mr. Richardson: Now -- g0 ahead.

Captain Zacharias: I was with Admiral Halsey's force
which had been to Wake Island to deliver the planes to
the Marines,

Mr., Richardson: Between the time of this conversation
with Admiral Kimmel, and the attack, were there any other
discussions between you and eny of the staff officers,

Or task commanders with respect to the probablility of
an attack on Hawaii from the air?

Captein Zacharias: There was.

Mr. Richardson: I want to know whether it was a matter
of general conversation, or simply a vague possibllity?

Captain Zacharias: There was. As I Indicated vhile on
sea. duty, I devoted myself to reading and study of intelli-
gence matters, For that reason I frequented the Fleet
Intelligence Office. The Fleet Intelligence Officer, then
Commander Layton, I kmew well, and I had recommended him to
Admiral Richardson for thet job which he did in an excellent

manner,
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

in my visits to the Fleet Intelligence Office and the
Public Relations Office I was enabled to keep track on
the situation as it was developing and there came a period
vhen I was somewhat coﬁcerned over the prospects. That
is what prompted me to Say at one time to a group of the

staff assembled, I can't recall just who was present at

: the time, -

Mr. Richardson: Where vas it?

Captain Zacharies: In the orfice of the Commender in
Chief Pacific Fleet, the fiag office.

I wvas prompted to S&y, as recorded in this memorandum
which has been presented to the comiittee, that "I think
it is time to stop these surprise inspections and get ready
for a surprise attack.” These surprise inspections were
methods by which the materiel conaitions of the ships were
ascertained without giving previous notice of visits by
either division commanders or others.

Mr. Richardson: Was there any rejoinder to that remark
On your part from those present?

Captain Zacharias: There was not. In the course of
those conversations I asked the Fleet Intelligence Off'icer
1f he had presented to the Var Plans Officer of the Commander

in Chief a certain extract from g Japanese book which con-

8idered the pros and ccns of Success of an attack on Pear)
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mp. Richardson

wsenator Lucas

That is included in one of the papers that were

| presented to the committee by the Navy Department and T

#I would like to refer to that later on. 1t is page 47 of

the papers.

’ senator Lucas: What is the date of that conversation, sir?

Captain Zacharias: ‘Tat was in October 1941. I will

Richardson: Between the time you had your rirst

talk with Admiral Kimmel and the time you had this talk in
Il the fgll of 1941 was the subject of a possible air attack
| on Peafl Harbor a matter of cormon or unusual discussion
| among the Wevy people that you met in Hawaii®
|
{

Captain Zacharias: Because of my —-

Richardson: VWas i1t op not?

Captein Zacharias: There was general discussion of

Richardson: Vas there any general feeling that

|

; whet would occur if we went to war with Japan.
|

|

an attack, an air attack, surprise air sttack was possible
or probable or likely or irprobable?

Captain Zachariss: There was not much expression of

1t was rather an acceptance of my opinion because

|
! of my background knowledge and any discussion was for the

of aecertaining what I thought in the premises, ang

'



r" Lol R e o B i BN e 1

-
— 8 : T
- - L. . - L] ol . s . 'h -y -
L L] - I}

AL-3 8730

Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Richardson

i1 cannot recall any objections to them or any attempt to

belittle the possibilities.

Mr. Richardson: Was there any discussion at any time
prior to the attack between you and the other commanders of
the task forces about the probabllity of an attack by air

| on Havaii in the case of hostilities?

Céptain Zrcharias: There was not. I was a little re-
luctent to impose my views here and there. I think most
of the off'icers present knew of my background and if the
task force commanders wanted any opinion from me they could

ask for it.

.
-
b
—
o
o
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I discussed with Admiral Spruaence, who was my Division

Commander when I was in command of the SALT LAKE CITY, the
possibilities of the success of Admiral Nomura in preventing

¢ |l hostilities developing between Japan and the United States.

17| Mr. Richardson: Did you believe he would be successful?

8 Senator Brewster: I donit belleve he had finishned

s || his answer.

20 ir. Richardson: Pardon me. Proceed.

(4) a1 f Captain Zacharias: In these conversations with Admiral

Spruance there was nothing very definite. There was nothing

e
- by

definite regarding what would happen if we went to war.

IT was more with regard to the possible success of preventing

war. outside of that T 414 not talk to any task rorce Commanaers,
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Questions by: Mr. Richardson
Mr. Keefe

I might say that I did at one time, or on several
occasions, endeavor to engage in conversation the i/ar Plans
officer of the Commander in Chief regarding the situation.
On three separate odcasiona i endeavored to do so, but he
vas alvays preoccupled and I was never able to do so. It
seemed rather strange to me at the time that he did not
vant to discuss it, so much so that I went to the Fleet
Intelligence Officer and questioned him about the attitude
of this individual.

Ir». Keefe;: Mr. Chairman, may I ask at this point:
Who was the War Plans 0fficer, by name?

Captain Zacharias: That was then Captaln C. H. McMorris,
U. S. Navy, nowv Vice Admiral licllorris.

As a result of what I took to be in the colloquial a
"brush-off", I never discussed the situation with him although
he was the War Plans Officer for the Commander in Chief.

The next time I discussed this with someone whom I
considered of importance was with Mr. Munson. I had -~

I'r. Richardson: Just a minute. He was a civilian?

Captain Zacharlas: Ile was & civilian, and who had
come to Hawaill with a letter signed by Admiral Stark, the
Chief of Naval Overations, which he showed to me, Munson

showved to me, stating that he was there to investigate

certain matters and_everything*was to be opened up to aim.
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: Mr. Kichardson

Munson told me that he had boen' advised to get in
touch with me because of my background knowledge ot the
Japanese. I had several conferences with him during the
period of October 20 to 26, 1941, and during those conver-
sations I related to him every aspect of a possible attack.
He was principally interested in whether or not there would
be an armed uprising in Hawall or on the llest Coast in case
or' a war between Japan and the United 3tates. |

After relating to him everything that I had told to
Admiral Kimmel I told him that he could forget about an
armed uprising or sabotage of any kind, that was categorical,
because it would begin with an air attack on our Fleet,
and for that reason it would have to be conducted with the
greatest secrecy anda therefore no Japanese, regardless of
theilr posltion in the United States or in Hawall, wouid
be aware of the fact that such an attack was coming.

That being so, and knowing the great preparations
that you have to make 1; an armed uprising or for the
commission of' sabotage, those contingencies were an im-
possibility, and I told him that I was convinced that
hostilities would begin with an air attack on the Fleet.

Mr. Richardson: Now, Captain, during the period
immediately before the attack do you know whet distant

reconnalssance ves belng cerried on of your own knovledge?
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Captain Zacharias: I do not.

Mr. Richardson: You vere with Halsey's Task Force?

Captain Zgcharias: Yes, sir.

Mr. Richardson: And your Task Force was ready for
battlie from the time you started up to the ‘time of the attack,
was 1t not?

Captain Zacharias: You mean from the date we left
Pearl Harbor on the 28th of November 19419?

Mr. Richardson: That is right.

Captain Zacharias: We received no direct orders rrom
Admiral Halsey but the Fleet went out ostensibly on routine
training on that morning. About noon we changed course
to the vestward and headed for Wake Island. That was not

the direcvion of the operating area and we knew that we

‘were going on a different mission.

As I recall Admiral Halsey did not send out any
specif'ic orders to the ships of his course, at least to
the cruisers, because there was no necessity. He had full
knowledge undoubtedly of what might be impending and I
assume that he was in a position to make any dispositions
necessary to meet any threat that we might encounter enroute
or returning from Veke Island. I knew that something unusual

was occurring but was not quite certain. Ve did learn enroute
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that, through signal, that we were going to Wake Island

o

. to deliver planes to the larines which the ENT'ERPRISE had
on board, that we would 1aunoh.them.about'100 miles east
of Wake Island and then return to Pearl Harbor. /e were
originally scheduled to arrive back in Pearl Harbor on the
5th of Dedember 1941, but we were delayed by fueling and
wveather and now I know because of certain orders which did
not speed us up, and we felt that that was where our luck

began because we were just 200 miles to the westward insvead

of being inside on December 7.

® ;)

Mr. Richardson: Do you regard that as good luck or

13 bad luck?

YA "INYd § QY M

3 Captain Zacharias: I regard that as good luck because

15 a8 a Cormanding Officer of a ship I prefer to take my

3 QO NOLONIMS

chances in the open sea rather than in an enclosed harbor.
Mr. Richardson: Now, can you glve us a little more

18 information on certain orders that you later discovered

had been transmitted, who transmitted them and what they

1D

20 vere, generally?
. 21 Captain Zacharias: What orders?

Mr. Richardson: You just said that you learned after-

vard of certain orders which delayed you. I am wondering

24 | what those orders were.
|
1 |

Ceptain Zacharias: Oh, that 1s only hearsay and what
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|

I have heard of the testimony before this committee.

Mr. Richardson: I see. When knowledge of the attack
came to youﬁin fact the direction in which you were directed
to search was to the south, was it not?.

Captain Zacharias: That is correct.

Mr. Richardson: Did that surprise you?

Captain Zacharias: 1t did. T might qualif'y that by
saying that in the numerous reports that we were recelving
subsequent to the attack it was Indicated that there was
a Japanese force down to the éohthard, put still I could
not reconcile them being there. ' .

Mr. Richardson: I have no further questions, Mr.
Chairman.

Captain Zacharias: If I may, I indicated that I feit
it important to present the reasons why I thought an attack
on Pearl Harbor or the Fleet would occur.

Mr. Richardson: Very well. Let me ask.you preparatory
to that, Captain, did you consider that the tension of the
situation with the probability of war with Japan constantly
increased during 19419

Captain Zacharias: It did.

Mr. Richardson: And was there any time that it was as

tense as it was during the week before the attack?

Captain Zacharias: I had, the week before the attack,
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having sailed on the 28th of November, which seems to have

. been the really turning point in the situation, I received

=

very little news anroute o Wake Island except through radio
. press, which indicated that there had been some difficulty

in the progress of the negotiations taking place in Washington.

| However, I had become somewhat concerned over certain 1
events which had transpired in the interim or during 1941,
such as the embargo and other things which were matters of
policy.

| Mr. Richardson: Now, as the tenseness grew in your

mind and with your experience did the dangor of an air attack

become greater and greater, as the tenseness continued?
Captain Zacharias: No, because I was alwvays convinced

that if the situation ever became such that hostilities

2 O 'NOLONIMEYAN "INYd N JlyY N

16 oetween Japan and the United States were imminent that the

Japanese would begin their campaign with an air attack on

17

i our Fleet wherever it was. | 1

o Mr. Richardson: What I am suggesting is that the d

condition of afrairs, the information you had, groving !

<0

tenseness of the situation, constantly made that danger i

- — — e —

greater?

Captain Zacharias: It did not make the danger of an

air attack any greater. It made the danger of hostilities

. become more imminent.
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Mr. Richardson: A8 hostilities became more imminent
the danger of an air attack increased?
Captain Zacharias: That 1s correct.

Mr. Richardson: No further questions.

Captein Zacharias: Now may I go ahead with the reasons
why I thought that there would be an air attack? | !

senator Lucas: Will you move closer to the microphone, T
pleasec.

Captain Zacharias: Yes, sir.

There were four very good reascns why 1 felt that in
case of hostilities between the United ostates and Japan :t
would begin with an air attack on cur Fleet.

First of all, the Japanese could be counted upon not
to comnit the grave strategical blunder of making a movement
to the southard without disabling a part of our Fleet and
that 1s in spite of the fact that we had in Pearl Harbor
at the time a force considerably inflerior to the Japancse
¥leet, namely, about 180 ships in the Japanese Fleet to
102 of ours,

That was because the Japanese wvell knew if they made
8 movemant to the southard that before we would be able to
assemble an exﬁeditionary force with which to take the

offensive against them we would be abie to bring around

from the Atlantic Coast the rest of our Fleet which would
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%“hen made us superior to the Japanese, even if that Fleet
had to go around the Horn.
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2 The Japanese are great students, They know every-
s thing that has been written about the fundamental of war-

4 fare, They know all of the lessons of history, and

s they could be counted upon to utiligze everything that

e has been written about 1it,

- They realized the velue of surprise as one of the

a fundamental Principles of warfare, They used 1t at Port

o Arthur with tremendous success. Therefore, 1t could be

certain that they would use 1t again at Pearl Harbhop b & 5

¢ 10

? 11 ! they could do it with fair safety.

; 12 ib I have: already indicateg that the Japanese wveighed

; 13 in their minds the probability of success of such an :

.g 14 | etlack on Pearl Harbor. They have written several books :

: " !I and those books, I might S&y, are alvays released under :
18 ,‘ the auspices of the military in Japan, becausa of the |
17 ’: Complete government control and censorship, |
18

" In those books they have discusseqd the probability f
19 i of success in var with the United States, In this particular I
20 l book, which 1is entitled "When Japen Fights," writfen
. 21 ostensibly by a civilian named H_‘Lrata.; he discussed the

22 || Pros and cons, and I think it might be well to read that,.

23 It is very short, and 1s included at page 47, I think, of

e

24 the papers which were glven to the committee.

25 He savs:
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"The American Commander in Chief has been occupied
by various secret plans, but the three points which he 1s the
most concerned are:

"(1) Will a Japanese fast striking force made up of
cruisers and aircraft carriers come on a scouting or striking
mission?

"(2) Will Japanese submarines hover near the islands
to attach or harass the Fleet?

"(3) Will a Japanese expeditionary force be sent over-
seas?

"The first of these is the most fearsome, Suppose
Japan were to form a fast striking force composed of such
speedy battleships (whose speed America cannot match) as
the Haruna, Xongo, and Kirishima, the aircraft carriers
Akagl and Ryujo and the Nachi class of heavy cruisers?

This would be a fast-stepping force that would be truly
‘matchless and invincable.

"Were they opposed to even the large guns of American
battleships, theycould utilize their superior speeds, thus
leaving their slow adversaries behind. If opposed to a
cruiser force, they could close in with telling blows,
crush the opposition. Truly this would be a peerless force;

able to close to battle, or open out, if outgunned. If
this fast striking force should meet misfortune, losing one
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h3 = Oor two fast battleships or aircraft carriers, they would
a aurély'be & severe blow to Japan, and we would hﬁve to grit
. our teeth, smothering our rage until the day of a decisive
a main engagement to obtain our revenge,
. "Maybe such a bold venture would be too great a risk,
y who can say? On the other hand, varfare is & risk, and he
8 who hesitates, or [ears the risks of bold venture, cannot
o wvage war.
28 “Morg over, an attack off Hawaili would be the first
? 1 battle of the Pacific war, and if in the very first engage-
; 12 ment one can wrest the courage away from the enemy by
§ 13 ; one’s own daring, it would put him in & funk or give him
g 14 || the jitters."
o
o
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Witness Zacharias

Mr. Rychardson: 'as that beok at all wildely read among

naval men?

Captain Zacharias: It was reéd by our officers who knew
the Japanese language. 1In fuct, this translation was made 1in
the Fleet Intelligence Offisce ut Hawall and; as I have indi-
cated, a oopy of this extr.ot was given to the War ™lans Of-
flocer about Coctober 1941. That was the third indicaticn.

The fourth indication that they would attack, open the

war by an attiok on our Fleet was somewhat etrengthened by

|| this incident which occurred in Mexico on Ootober 16, 1940,

We had always known through discussions of the g5/3 ratio

Athat Japan was anxious to have the number of capltal shins

| reduced because they felt‘thaf wilth a 5/56/3 ratio it was pos-

s8ible for us to arrive in the theater of operations 4n As 1a

wlth more than parity. That is what crystallized in m7y mind

{:ho faoct that they would make an attak on our Fleet for the
purpose of getting four battleships., Four battleshivs cut of
our number, which were then fifteen, excluding the two new

ones which we had not yet commissioned, would have reduced

]

'what they considered g parity with us,

us to eleven., One battleship they knew was always in t@o
Navy Yard under overhaul, bringing us down to ten. Under the
treaty they were allowed nine battleships, but, as expected,

they had rearmed the Hiyel; which breught them upto ten, or
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1
I
2 As we know, the intensity of their attaock was direoted
‘-‘ 3 |towaria the battleships and I think my impressicns were con-

4 ||firmed. Those were the four reasons why I felt certain that

5 ||[hostllitles with Japan would begin_ with an air attack on our

e |[Fleet.

- Now, I would like to Jump back to my ccenverasation with
8 |/Admiral Kimmel, to say that in the precautions that I felt we
o |lshould tske I indicated that there would be earliest indica-

10 ||tions of hostilities and unmistakable signs of hostilities,

E 't || Awong the earliest indications I told him would be the
X ; 12 |withdrawal of their merbthant ships to Japén. We had long
‘ : 13 Iroallzod that and had kept a complets track of the loorticn of
% 14 Iovery Japanese merchant vessgel throughout the world., I started
E 15 |(that system myself in 1935 in the Office of Naval Intelligenoce.
: 16 The other early 1ndio.:.-..t1.on would be preparaticns or, rath-

17 r's deceptive measures in which they would engage » 8ome of
18 hich developed. The unmistakable 8lzne, as I pointed out to
10 dmiral Kimmel, would be the appearance of submarines in the

20 awallan area, in which cas= he could well realize that the

21 apanese were then rezdy to strike.
' 22 In my conversations with Mr, Munson there was one addi-
23 lonal indication which T duave to himrand that was that we

24 |plresdy had two Japanese envoys in Washington, Admir:1 Nemura

25 rnd Mr. Kurusu; that when the third envoy arrived they could

i

|
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def initely look for things to break one way or the other,

I learned over the radio on the 3rd of December that the
Japanese Ambassador to Peru, Mr. Sakamoto, had arrived in
Washington and that made me feel that the situaticrn was ocoming

to a head,
Mr. Richardson: I have no further qQuestions,

The Chairman: I d4id not have the privilege of hearing

'youf testimony up to now because I was unavoidably absent and

I mvy &8k a question or two_that has alreasdy been covered.

You Just spoke of the Peruvian Japanese Minister arriving
in Washington on the 3rd of December. |

Captain Zachariaa! Yes, sir.

The Chairman: Where were You at that time?

Captaln Zachariss: I was in ocommand of the Salt Lsake
City. 7e were then en route to Pearl Harbor from Wake Island.

The Chairman: From Wake?

Captaln Zacharias: Yes, sir,

The Chalrman: When 4id you arrive at Pearl H:rbor?

Captain Zacharias: On the morninz of -- at noen on the
8th of December,

The Chairman: On the 8th. After the attazck?

Captaln Zacharlas:! Yes, sir.

The Chairman: You got this information about the Peru-

vian Minister or Ambassador on the 3rd by radio you say?
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Witneaxs Zacharias Questions by: The Chairman

Captaln Zach:rias: By radlo, yes, sir,

lhe Chairman: You had a radio recaliving set on board
the ship?

Captaln Zacharias: We had many sets, yes, alf.

The Cheirman: 4nd you got 1t through*a radlio?

Captain Z;charias: Y°8, sir,

The Chairman: Do you know whether the office"s in charge
of the Pesrl Harbor installaticns in the Fleet and partioy-
larly Admiral Kimmel, Admiral Bloch or General Short, had
that inform:ction sbout the Psruvian Minister coming here on
the thirg? |

Capt:in Zachariss: It ig possible they had the infor-
mation regarding his arrival but I had not indicated to them

that that would have any be:-ring on the subsequent events

{ because I did not know in my oconveraations wilth Admiral Kime

mel that there would be even & second ambassador arrivinz

The Chairman: You don't know wh:»t his reacticn to that

would have been if he hai Known it?

Captaln Zacharias: I do not know, sir,

The Chalrman: Vere Jou stationed at Pearl Harbor or in

| the Hawallen Islands when you had this conversatien in March

- With Admiral Kinmel?

Captaln Zgocharias: I was in command of the heavy oruis-

| 8T Salt Lake City and I have already indicated in my testimony
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. why I sought this confersnce with Admiral Kimmel and that was
to disouss, to make certaln he had received the report of my
conference with Admirel Nomura which I had 2iven in detail to
Admirzl Stark in a letter to Admiral Stavk.

The Chalrman: Maybs you have already stated 1t. "Yhat

me8 Admiral Kimmel's resaotion to that prediction?
Captain Zacharias: ‘vhat he stated? I 114 s.ate, sir.

The Chairman: All right. State 1t agaln, please,

. Ceptaln Zacharias: He suald to me, "Well, we have neither

the personnsl nor the materiel wWith which to curry out thie
Lpatrol." I had indicated to him thut the only way to pre-
| vent this alr attack which would come do'n wind from the

| northward because that was the pravalling wind in Hawall, was

to have out patrols at least five hundred miles then, and he

| stated that he had neither the personnel nor material with

| Which to ocarry out such patirols and I saild to him, "Well,

| #dmiral, you better get them besause thet 18 what 18 acming, "

The Chairman: You formed ycur conoclusion as to what

' was ocming from your general knowledge of the 8iltuation, to-

'
'gether with your experiance, your long experience in the

. Intelligence Division?
f Gapti.in Zacharias: That ia correot, sir,
| The “hairman: You did not have the benefit of any magie

or intercepted messages at the time you formed your oconoclusion
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and at the time you transmitted Jour conclusion to Admiral
Kimmel?

Captain Zacharias: No, 8ir, I 4id not, I 4id have some
knowledge of ocertain messages which dealt with the Far Easgt-
ern sltuation 1n general but I would not 8ay that I hed aoe
cess to any which really bore upon the events which fellowed.

The Chairman: Have ycu read those intercepted messages
as they have been filed with the committee?

Captain Zacharias: Yes, sir,

The Chairman: Have Jou resd the messages about which
Admiral Kimmel and General Short have testified as beinz mes- *

8ages to which they were entitled and which might have ohangod
thelir sourse of aotion if they h:d had them?

Captaln Zacharias: Those which were not de oded, I think, |

untll «fter Pe.rl Harbor, | rﬁ
The Chairman: No, some of thep were decoded,
Senator Brewster: But not communi-ated,

The Chairman: But not cromunisuted. They were de coded

but not ccmmuniszated to them, .
Captain Zacharias: Yes, 8ir, I now recall them,
The Chairman: As an Intellizence Officer I wovld 1 ike to

ask your opinion as to whether those messazes if transmitted

would have given any additional information as to the ‘mmed-

late likelihood of an attack on Pearl Harbor?
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| Captain Zacharias: I can state the effect that they would

have had on me but I cannot 8tate what effeot they would have

il A e e —— =

had on Admiral Kimmel or General Short.

A ——

The Chalirman: 'ell, I realize that but Juat for my own
- Not ourlosity ex:octly but for my own informaticn I would like

|

| te Zet an opinicn as to what reacticn they would have hud on

you,
, Captaln Zucharias: What Opinion I wo::ld have had?

The Chairman: Yes,

Captain Zacharias: Why, I can state poslitively if I h:d
hud :00ess to those messages 1t would have further confirmed
| my oplinion as to vhat took plane,
‘The‘Chalrman: Those messages, outside of the one carving

up the Pearl Harbor region or area into five differ-nt seog-

| tions for the shivs to be parked =- that 18 not the naval word,
Mr. Murphy: Docked,
The Chairman: Docked or berthed pertain to the --

Captaln Za chariss: The _five d1fferent what, sir?

[ The Chairman: One of those mossages was an intercept of

‘ a meeea*e between the Hawallan Islands and Tokyo indicating

" the dividing up of the harbor into five sectinns and the berth-

!-1ng of the ships there, which might have indicated they had.

some partlcular interest in that in Pearl Harbor, but outside

| of that,'as I recall, the other messages were dealing with
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' the genecral situation between Japan and the United States and
!the growing tensity of it., Yould those messages outside of
:that one, would those messages have indic:ted any additional

]

ﬂlikélihnod of an attack upon Pearl Harbor?

| Captaln Zucharlas: Yes, I think I can aay categorically
' th&t thoie messages would have had a very distinct effeot on

;m’ opinion.
|

The Chalrman: Now, this book from which You have quoted
here, you 8:y that the part you read was translated and distri-
fbuted among the naval offlcers?

Captain Zecharias: I do not kr_xow t he 4istribution but

this cony was given to mely the Flset Intelligenne Offiner be-

cause 1t was translated in that offiloe and I picked it up in

the oourse of my conversations with them and my interest in the

situation.,

The Chalrman: That was in Ootober?

Captain Zacharias: Anout Qoteber,
i The Chairman: 19417

| Captaln Zecharlas: 1941, yes, sir,

| The Chairman: W¥ell, that 18 ell I will ask at the momsnt.

I am at a dlsadvantage bezause I d41d not hear the rest of the

|
testlmony. Congressman Cooper.

' The Vice Chairman: That Fleet Intellizence Offiger you

;
referred to, Captain, wus the Flest Intellizence Of "icer of the

i

- v = il 3
-
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Witness Zachuarias Quesntirns by: .he Vice Chairman

| Paoclfic Fleet under the ormmand of Admiral Kimmel?

Captaln Zachorlas: He was the first Fleet Intelligenoce
Of ficer of the Paciflio Fleet and late, ud the nams was
changed -- first he was Fle~t Intelliwence Offiser of the
- United Stetes Fleet and when 1t was changed later teo the
. Yacific Fleet he becama Tlaat Intelligance Offiocer of the Paol-
: fin Fleet, He hai been there for quite a ocrnsiderable time
befcre Pecrl Harbor,

The Vice Chalrman: Well, at the time you received this
copy that you have read to the occomittee he was then Admiral
Kimmelt!s Intelligence Officar?y

Captailn Zacharias: That ia gorreot.

The “halirman: Would yeu allow'me to ask one question
that I have overlooked?

1he Vice Chalrman: Yea,

The Chairman: What, from your experience, your loﬁg
experiecnce in the Intelligenoce VUlivisicn of the Navy, what 1is
the preotise of naval officers in the Navy Department in
transmitting diplomctic messages to naval officers in the
field or in the wateras whe»e they zre 1in command?

Captain Zacharias: I think the general prlicy 18 to
Tive such messazes only to thoseas who need to know their
exlstence,

The Ciclirman: Thers 1s a general perlicy that from such

TN ST T R e D e SRS g il T AT NS o SN
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L messages as are rec~2ived initially anywhere an o8timate of

ﬂ the situation 18 drawn and thut 18 transmitted to the ocom-

manding officers both in the Navy and War departmenta, is 1t?

Captain Zéohariaa: I 414 not get that,
| The Chairman: Instead of serding each individual 4iplo-

matlic message that 1s plcksd up 1n general for any regson or

from any scurce to the cemmanding officers in the fileld or
- in the waters in which the Navy may be operating, 1s it the
practloe to send them an estimate, a general estimate of the

|

8ituation drawn from those messages that are recelived in the

Department as a waole?

‘ Captaln Zachurias: Either or both of those methods are
'employod.

The Chairmani Either or both?

'Captain Zuchariast Yes.

The Cha15hans All right.

The Yice Chairman: Captain, would you Zive us a little

more information as to why you considered the arrival of the

'third Japanese envoy so impor:ant?

Captaln Zacharias: The reasons ai: to why I felt that the

!arrival of a third envoy in Washington would precipitate a

:deoiaion, that came through experience in Intelligence work
!and our observation of the wmany Japanese missions which came
;over to this country on inspecticn trips or purchasing mis-

i
!
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|

. 8lons,
We noticed that almost invariably when they went to a

c2rtaln industrial 20T1vity they were interested in one par-

tioular thing in that plant. Dependins on its imnertance, a

' seoond mission would come and go to thct same plant and showed

| an interest only in thu.t perticular pileca of mashinary or
iwhatever 1t was. They would be folloved by a third group, who
' woild go through the Same procedure and after the vieit of

|
the third group all interest in that plant and that particular

1tem would disapp=ar.

In my mind I formulated the opinion that the Japanesae
would not accept the view of a single individual: that two
indiividuals usually regulted in a controversy. Therefore, 1t
was necessary to have the opinion of a third one bafore they
would reach their decision. That 1s typical and in line with
everything Japanese,

The Vice Chairman: It is part of their way of operating,
| to do everything three times before they reach a decision?

Captain Zacharias: That is correct, 8ir, and that is

Possibly the recson why even in thelr most importunt operge-

gtions they have in the past taken away the initiative from

'the commander-in-chief and required him to get his detailed

Kinstruotlons from Tokyo before he would make any move.

|
]

1 feel that that very condition was responsible for in
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| Witness Zacharias | Guestions by: The Vice Chairman

' sone degree our success at Midway. Ordinarily when a foroe

18 occming in to make a surprise attack, as they wers doing

ajain «t Midway, a commander-in-ohief would know that he had
been discovered when they spotted a patrol plane of ours two
days before and would then retire to a aeofor and come in at

& later date. The commander«in-chiaf was not empowered to

L meke any such decision ani by the time, T assume, that he wag

able to contact Tokyo and get permission to chanze his plan

1t was too late.

I give that as an indlcation that deoisions by the
Japanese are nevsr confined to & 8ingle individual or even
two,

The Chairman: And you oite that instance as something

that actually happened that contributed to our sucoess in the-

- Battle of Midway?

Captain Zaoch.rigs: Yes, sir, that wu.s known; that ine
formation had been furnished to Mr. Munson and, as I indioca-
ted in the memorandum, I talked with a third*party, went over
the detalls of this thing completaly the night before I
8alled for Wake Island, The night before was N ovember 27,
1941; and thut was with Mr. Lorrin Thurston, the head of the
Honolulu Advertiser ani the head of 8Tatien KGU in Honolulu,
vho was a Nilitury Intellizence Reserve Off loer, a oaptain.

The Vice Chairman: He was & Captain in the Uniteq Stutes
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t Army?

| Captain Zach:rias: Yes, Mllitﬁry intelligeno= Remerve
g and, as I 1hdioatod in that memorandum, he expressed sur-
é prise that he had not been informed as to whet to sand out
- over his radio when the air attack ocame.
! The Vioe Chalirman: Well, now, I want to try tc under-
i_stand you & little more olearly, Captain, about this ~-- vhat
. was hls nume, Thurston?

Captain Zachurlas! Leger-r«i-n Teh-u-r-g-t-o-n; Lorrin
Thurston.

The Vice Chairman: 'Well, was he at that time a Captain
in the United Statea Army?

Captalin Z acharlas; He wae a captain in the Military

Intelligence Reserve of the United States Army, not on active

duty.
The Vioce Chairman: Not on active duty?
Captaln Zach.rias: Right,
The Vioce Chalrman: 'ell, was that a oivilian radio

statlon that he had or was it a military radio station?

Captain Zachurlas: That wes one of the two oivilian

radlo staticns on the Isluand of Osghu.

R e S e

The Vice Chairmen: And Just what wus 1t you told him?

Captain Zacharias: I related to him the entire prob-

abllity of events a8 I have alreudy teutified and that is

————— = pe——
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what caused him to say to me with an expression of surprise,
. "Why, I am here and a.hoaorvo Intelligence Officer in 0=" and
EI have not been given any indication of what I should send
- out over the radio in the event of an alr attack."

I sald to him, "Well," I ssaid, "if you suy 'We are have
iing a sporadic alr attack; there 1s no reason for alarm.
iEveryono should keep in doors becuuse if yoeu go on the streéts
;you will interfere with the military goinz to their posts,
Just stay at home and keep calm,'"

And I might say that on the morning of December 7th when
the Communications Offlcer brouzht me the word around eight
o'olocik that Cchu had been attacked, I turn-d cn my redio end
almost those exaot words wers going out over KGU.

The Vice Chairman: Vell,now, I cannot gay that I under-
stand this., I am sure it is my fault but I am sorry., I still

do not quite understund just the status of that officer, You

8ay he was not on active duty?

| Captain Zacharias: He was not on active duty.
The Vice Chalrman: Then you suy he was workinz with the

l
|
'Army Intelllgence Office. Now, what does that mean?

i Captaln Zacharlas: I did not say he was working with
i
!

the Intelligence Offise. I sald that hewas an Intelligence

Of ficer in the Militury Reserve not on aotive duty but I hap-

pened To know that he was consulted from time to time by the
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Army because he was , very prominent citizen in Hawall by
reason of those two positions he ococupied, but I injeot that :

only to indicate that up to the very last moment thesa ideas

= —— A . e g e | —

‘that I had were being'paased along as freely as possible,

The Vioe Chalrman: Well, the resson I got the impressicn

' that he was connected with the 4rmy Intelligense Office there

|

in Hawall was ycur statement that yecu sald he wus surprised
 that he had not been told’ about that bezause he was connected
with the #rmy Intellizence Office,
Captaln Z acharlas: Vell, if I conveyed the impressicn
that that was beling oritizal of the Army for not advising him
I ask to correot that because it was not., That was only in-

cldental and the surprise was on his part.
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: The Vice Chairman

There were no implications in that. I only brought
that in to further substantiate the fact that I was carrying
all these things along in my own mind.

The Vice Chairman: Well, you told us about your con-
versation with Admiral Kimmel in which you gave him the
information that you here related, and then you state that
you conveyed substantially the same opinion, or expressed
the same views to Captain Layton.

Captain Zacharias: No, sir, I did not say that I had
expressed those same views to Captain Layton. Undoubtedly
in our many conversation, possibilities and probabilities
were dlscussed, but I did not say that I had given layton
specifically an outline of what I had expected. I assume
that he would arrive at similar conclusions because of his
experience in Intelligence, and knowledge of the Japanese.
He was also a Japanese language officer.

The Vice Chairman: And you had served with him, and
it was on your recommendation that he vas.appointed in the
position he was then holding?

Captain Zacharias: That is correct.

The Vice Chairman: Now, who else, if anybody, besides
Admirel Kimmel, did you tell substart 1ally this same thing
to?

Captain Zecharins: T think those were all. As I sald

e b B B .
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: The Vice Chairman

before, I was on duty there in the Hawaiian area., I
already expressed myself to Admiral Kimmel and his Chief
of Staff. I felt if there 'was anything further that they
wanted from me, they knew where I was, and they could get
it.

The Vice Chairman: You were not at that time in the
Intelligence Service of the Navy?

Captain Zacharias: I was not, except indirectly,
because I had been admonished by a former director of
Naval Intelligence when I completed a certain tour of duty
in Nevel Intelligence, when he said to me "Although you
are now leaving this office to go to sea, you must consider
yourself as continuing your active intelligence work., I
hope you will feel that way and continue to do so, because
of your background and the value that it will have to the
Navy, and generally in the future."

In other words, he gave me a commission to continue
1ntelligpnc§ vork even while I was afloat, and I proceeded
to do so, even to the extent of engaging in certain counter-
espionage activities, while I was abroad ship.

The Vice Chairman: I believe you stated you had
directly, or in an indirect way, about 25 years experience

in Naval Intelligence work?

Captain Zachariss: That is correct, sir.
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Witness Zacharias Quoationa'by: The Vice Chairman

The Vice Chairman: Then the groator part of your
37 years'! service in the Navy has been devoted to that
line of work?

Captain.Zacharias. That is correct, sir, although
the portions afloat, as I have indicated, were during my
spare time, because all Japanese language officers well
realized that in order to have the possibility of pro-
motlion by selection in addition to their specialty, they
had to be good Naval officers.,

The Vice Chairman: Now, one other inquiry, if I may
please, Captain.

This information that you say you conveyed to Admiral

Japanese, and the relations existing between Japan am the
United States, or was any part of that: directly the re-
sult of your conversation with Admiral Nomura?

Captain Zacharias: I think I can say categorically‘
that it was principally my background experience, and not
tho‘result of the conversation.with..ndmiéal Nomura, I
had hoped that he might be able to arrive at a successful
solution to the situation between Japan and the United
States. T might say after my conv;rsation.with.him, I was

not too hopeful, but I felt -- I knew that -- I will stick .

to my original expression, T felt that he was quite anxious
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: The Vice Chairman

to prevent a war between Japan and the United States,
because he had always said to me that if Japan and the
United States went to war, it would mean the finish of
the Japanese Empire and a gresat loss to the United States.
He reiterated thatin my conversation with him in San Fran-
cisco on Februmry 8, 1941,

The Vice Chairman: Well, you sought this conference
with Admiral Nomura in San Francisco, then, did you?

Captain Zacharias: I did, and when I had previously
notified the Cammander in Chief of the United States Fleet,
Admiral Richardson, that I proposed to do s0, he liked the
ldea and asked me to send him a copy of the report of that
conversation immediately after itwas completed.

The Vice Chairman: And you were then serving as
Naval Intelligence Officer at San Francisco?

Captain Zacharias: No, sir, I was then in command of
the heavy crulser, Salt Lake City, which had recently come
into Mare Island to be overhauled,.and an implementation
of her armement.

The Vice Chairman: Had'you been ordered, directed, or
had a suggestion come to you that you have such a conversa-
tion with Admiral Nomura?

Captaeln Zachariass: Only through the attitude of

Admir»al Richardson when I indicated t6o him that I had known
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Admiral Nomurs intimately in Japan, and on subsequent
occaslions of his visit to the United States,that I had
found him the one Japanese who was willing and never
embarrassed by:disousaing situations, and I felt if anybody
.éculd get from him an expression of opinion as to the
real mission for which he was sent over, that I could do
it. I felt there was only one other person in the United
States with whom he would talk as frankly, and that was
Admiral W. V. Pratt, retired.

The Vice Chairman: You had known Admiral Nomura in
Japan?

Captain Zacharias: Yes, sir,

The Vice Chairman: How long were you stationed in
Japan, Captain?

Captain Zacharias: The first time about three years.

The Vice Chairman: Were you Naval Attehe at our
Embassy there?

Captain Zacharias: I was an attache at the Embassy
for the purpose of learning the language and studying the
people., It was during that period that I first met Admiral
Nomura, He was then director of Naval Intelligence in
Japan,

The Vice Chairman: All told, how much time have you

spent in Japen ?
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Captain Zacharias: About four yeérs. I went back to
the Asiatic Fleet in 1926 for a specific purpose, and on
my way back from the Asiatic Fleet I was in Japan for a
period of something over six months, to refresh my knowledge
of both the language, the people,and the situation;

The Vice Chairman: Well, after your conversation with
Admiral Richardson, in which he indicated at least to you
that 1t thought it might be well for you to talk to Admiral
Nomura, you then did have the conversation with him?

Captaln Zacharias: I did, sir.

The Vice Chairman: And you reported by way of a
memorandum on that conversation to Admiral Stark, Chief of
Naveal Operations?

Captain Zachariss: I wrote a personal ard very
lengthy letter to Admiral Stark, a copy of which you have
in the papers that were furnished by the Navy Departm ent
to the committee, and I received a reply from Admiral
Stark, a copy of which also has been furnished to you,
in which he indicated that my letter to him was very
interesting and illuminating, and he had sent the original
over to the President and had made copies for the Secretary

of the Navy, and Secretary of State.
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Witness Zacharias Questions by: The Vice Chairman

The Vice Chairman: I believe you state that copies
were sent to Admiral Kimmel and in your conversation with
him he told you he had received it.

Captain Zacharias: That is correct, sir.

The Vice Chairman:; Now what was the occasion for your
writing the memorandum to the other Admiral, Admiral Draemel?

| Captain Zacharias: That memorandum, as you recall, was

I ¥ritten on March 17, 1942. The specific purpose of that

memorandum was to advise Admiral Nimitz, then Commander in

Chief of the Pacific Fleet, of the situation existing in
Hawall as I sav 1t, and to indicate to him that if certain
steps were not taken to change the situation existing there
|| that he could expect something even more disastrous than

| what took place at Pearl Harbor.

': As you know, that dituation eventuated less than three
months later and precipitated the battle of Midway. At

that time, as you lmow; the Jepanese were approaching Hawaii

| With an overpovering force for the purpose of capturing

Hawaii arter Midway.

I must say that I felt that we were very fortunate in
the conclusion of that campaign. 1 know that Admirel Nimitz
| felt that vay after the battle of Midway had finished.

| - Now, as 1 say, this memorandum was prepared for Vice

1 Admiral Nimitz of the situation then existing. I was very

l




9 T "NOLONINSYM "INYd ¥ Q¥YMm

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

10

20

21

23

24

BT h
Witness Zacharias Questions by: The Vice Chairms:

much concerned in what had not been done regarding Japanese

agents in Hawaiil subsequent to Pearl Harbox:, the inspections

of various localities and everything else as is outlined in
this memorandun.

I was still the Commanding Officer of a ship and it
Took a good deal of deliberation on my part to decide to go
over to the Commander in Chief and present my views to him.
However, because of my background in Intelligence and knowing
that I was the Senior, the one officer in the United States
Navy who had such & background of knowledge regarding the
Japanese, and in Intelligence work, I felt it my duty to
advise him of the situation as I saw it, and I proceeded to
have a conversation with Admiral Draemei, his Chief of Stfa.ff f
to see what he might suggest.

Af'ter golng over alli these details with him, which
included & complete anaiysis of the situation prior to Pearl
Harbor, and that was given to Admiral Draemel for the sole
purpose of let'tlng him know my background and to let him
know, or, rather, to convince him that I knew wvhat I was
talking about, that was the soie purpose of giving him this
Pre-Pearl Harbor background.

Arter my conversation, and the relation of it was given

%0 him, he said, "Well, now, I agree with you practically 99

percent and I wish you would write that out for me in the




AL-3

(8)

D G "NOLDNIHSYM "INVvd W QuYM

10

13

14

17

18

20

21

23

24

L765
Witness 2acharias Questions by: The Vice Chairman

form of a memorandum so I can give it to Admiral Nimitg
%o read, and then if he wants to discuss it with you further
he can do so."

I told him I would be very glad to do that. I returned
to my ship and wrote out the memorandum as exactly as possible
&8 our oanversation had taken place and gave it to him.

The Vice Chairman: Then on March 17, 1942, when you
wrote this memorandum to Admiral Nimitz, you were then in
the Pacific Fleet?

Captain Zacharias: That is correct, sir. I was a
subordinate.

The Vice Chairman: And in command of the cruiser SAINM

LAKE CITY?

Captailn Zacharias: In command of the cruiser SALT LAKE
CITY,

The Vice Chairman: I believe you stated, Captain, that
you vere graduated from the Naval Academy in 1912,

Captain Zacharias: That is correct, sir.

The Vice Chairman: From what 3tate were you appointed?

Captain Zacharias: Florida.

The Vice Chairman: And you have been in the Navy
continuously since then?

Captain Zachariass: That 1s correct.
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The Chairman: Senator George had to leave to go to
the floor. Congressman Clark is not here.

oenator Lucas,

Senator Lucas: Captain, you told the committee a few
moments ago that in October, 1941, you attempted, on three
different occasions, to discuss the Japanese situation from
the standpoint of a surprise attack with Captain Layton. 1Is
that ripht?

Captain Zacharias: No, sir. This was with Captain
Mci-!orria -- and 1t was not to discuss the possibilities of
an alr attack, it was to discuss the current situation of
our relations with Japan.

Senator Lucas: Well, why did you want to see Captain 4
McMorris at that time? ;
Captain Zecharias: Because he was the War Plans Officer
and I knew that he would be drawing up any procedures for

eventualities.

Senator Lucas: What did you have in mind discussing
with Captain McMorris?

Captain Zacharias: I would have discussed with him
the probabilities.

Senator Lucas: Of an air attack?

Captain Zacharias: Of vhat might eventuate. I think
I would have related to him then everything I had told Admiral
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Kimal; booausé 1t wvas just at that same period that I had
the conversations with !Mr. Munson.

Sergior Lucas: Why were you so free with Munson with
respect to the possibility of an air attack and yet you did
not pass it on in October 1941 to the proper authorities in
Hawaii?

Captain Zacharias: I had already passed it along to
Admiral Kimme].

Senator Lucas: Yes, you had done that back in March,
1941.

Captain Zacharias: Yes.

Senator Lucas: Did it ever occur to you, as the tense
situation developed between this country and Japen, to again
repeat that to Admiral K:meal?‘

Captain Zacharias: I have already indicated that Admiral
Ximmel end his Chief of Staff knew that I was a Commanding

Officer in his Fleet, and I felt that if he wanted any further

Information from me he knew where he could find me. I did
not again go over to bring myself to his attention, because
I long since learned that when you are persistent in these

things you arouse certain feelings which nullify the effect

which you desire to produce.
Senator Lucas: Did you feel that they considered you a

sort of a nuisance for interfering with their own decisions




(9)

2 Q "NOLONIHSYM "Invd ¥ QuYMm

10
11
12
13
14
15
10
17
18
19
20
3.1
22
23
24

25'

8768

Witness Zacharias Questions by: Senator Lucas

when you made suggestions of this kind?

Cagptain Zacharias: No, sir, there was no indication of
that. Why Captain McMorris did not want to discuss it I do
not know, but 1t so impressed me after the third attempt that
1 went in to Commander Layton and said, "What is the matter
vith Captain McMorris? I tried to engage him in a conversa-
tion about this situation but he does not feel l:l.ké talking
about 1t." And the Intelligence Officer indicated to me
1@ did not know any reason why he should not want to discuss 1it.

Senator Lycas: You vere a very good friend of Captain
Tayton?

Captain Zacharias: Yes, sir.

Senator lLucas: I understand you recommended him.

Captain Zacharias: I did.

Senator Lucas: J/as it Iayton you recommended for the
position he held in the Fleet at that time?

Captain Zacharias; That is correct. I might add that
I was also a good friend of Captain MclMorris and he is a
classmate of mine.

Senator Lucas: Now did you discuss with Layton at any
time in October 1941 the possibilities of an air attack and
give tohim the substance of the conversation that you gave

L0 Munson?
Captain Zecharies: No, only I think I discussed with him
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the fact that Munson had sought me ought, and what I had

L]
h ' I-u- g - i

: gone over with him I cannot recall.
: Senator Lucas: Why did you consider Munson more impertant
: than Layton?
: Captain Zacharias:; Because Munson had come out with i
; a letter signed "H, R. Stark", to open up everything to him. :
! That letter was to the Commander in Chief of the Pacific |
. Fleet. S0 I tried to get from Munson some indication as to
. vhom he was representing, but he consistently declined to
g < tell me, in a very friendly manner, so I did not pursue it
!é " further, but I reached my own conclusions.
g - Senator Lucas: Did Munson talk to Captain Layton while
g < ne was tilere?
: - Captain Zacharias: Yes, sir.
- Senator Lucas: Did you confer with Layton after !Munson
= left and discuss with him the conversation that you might
have had?
18
PN captain Zacharias: ©Now, only incidentally, possibly.
o In one of my visits to the Fleet Intelligence Officer I said
< I had some conversations with Munson and had given him my
z idea of what would occur.
e oenator Lucas: Ag I recall, Admiral Kimmel does not
" remember the conversation you had with him in March, 1941.

Captain Zacharies: T have indicated that I was possibly one

<3




.- |
AL~ 8770

Witness Zacharias Questions by: Senator Lucas

of hundreds with whom he talked » and although the subject

2
2 of our conversation was one which I felt » and still feel,
i | vas most vital to his position as Commander in Chief of
& the Fleet, I have said that I can realize that he might
5 not remember the detaills of that conversation.
3 senator Lucas: Have you talked to Captain Smith, the
. other off'icer who was present at the time you engaged
" Admiral Kimmel in a conversation about this important matter?
. 10 Captaln Zacharias: Not about the matters I discussed
§ .1 || there. I probably have spoken to him in greetings.
§ = The Vice Chairman: Will the Senator yield?
g 5 Senator Lucas: Yes.,
g 14 The Vice Chairman: I understood the Senator to state
: ia Admiral Kimmel testified he did not have the conversation
. with him.
+ | Senator Iucas: If' I saild that I am wrong. Admiral
" Kirmpl did not recall the substance of the conversation
H that he had with you, Captain?
o The Vice Chairman: If the Jenator will permit, I
gy || interrogated Admiral Kimmel about that. He stated that he
= did have a conversation with Captain Zacharias in March of
o 1941. Then I read to him this statement from your memorandum

22 and asked him whether Captain Zacharias told him there would

28 | be-an air attack on Pearl Harbor, and ne answered that he

R R

'
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- - v - - " - - _... [ . ”
— L o, - - ) L™ & []




——

Heook
follows

10

12

13

14

D a ‘NOLONIHEYM "INVvd ¥ QNYM

15

17

18

20

23

24

11

Witness Zacharias Questions by: Senator Lucas

did not believe that.

Senator Lucas: Yes, I think that is right.

Captain Zacharias: I think I can clarify that.

Senator Lucas: Clarify it, if you will, sir.

Captain Zacharias: Yes, sir. The question asked of
Admiral Kimmel was whether this was going to take place,
or whether I had told him that this would take place on
December 7, and he said I did not.

The Vice Chairman: I will read the quotation, if the
Senator will indulge me a moment.

Jenator Lucas: I yield for that purpose.

A2 Al a
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The Vice Chairman: I first asked Admiral Kimmel:

"Now, you were asked some qucﬁtiane about some con-
versations between you and Captain Zacharias."

Senator Brewster: What page 1is that?-

The Vice Chalirman: Page 7133 of our transcript.

Admirel Kimmel answered:

"Yes, sir."

Then I asked:

"He was an officer under your command at the time?

"Admiral Kimmel: Yes."

Then I asked:

"And you stated that you did have a conversation with
him in March of 1941, and you did not recall that he said
anything to you about expecting an air attack on Pearl
Harbor, is tht correct?

"Admirel Kimmel: That is right. I made such a state-
ment as that."

Then I askéd:

"Did you have any conversation with him at any other
time other than March, 19417

"Admiral Kimmel: Not that I now recall.”

Then I asked:

"You had .no other caversation with him at #ll, that you

remember?
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h2 | "pdmiral Kimmel: Well, I cannot recall every conver-
. sation I had with every officer in Pearl Harbor, but so
; far as I know, Captain Zacharlias never expressed any idea
- that an attack on Pearl Harbor was imminent at any time
= to me, He may have expressed such sentiments, I do
7 not know."
= Then I sald:
o " Now, then, Admiral, you say that when you recelved
. 10 the message of November 24, 1941, from the Chief of Naval
% 1 Operationu,“ -- then I inquired sbout the message of November
. ;E 12 24,
g '3 Then shortly after that we recessed for noon.
é 14 Captain Zacharias: Yes, sir.
ﬁ P The Vice Chairman: In the meantime I had looked at
16 these papers that had been filed before we resumed the
19 afternoon session, or that you had filed with the Navy De-
18 pertment. There was only one CODy, and I had not read 1t
10 up to that time, but during the:noon recess I looked through
20 it., Then, when we resumed the hearing after noon, I quest-
. a1 ioned Admiral Kimmel further on that point, as appears on
= page 7140 of our transcript.
23 Senator Brewster: Would not you take page 7137, where

you started your question on that? That 1is wvhere you began

4

in the afternoon about the conversation.
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The Vice Chairman: That was during the morning. I
had not thought that was important, but this should pre-
cede what I read.

Senator Brewster: That was the afternoon sesslion,
page 7137, when we resumed the inquiry, and introduced
the exhibit.

The Vice Chairman: Oh, yes, I see now, Prnge T137.

Captain Zecharias: I think I know the point,

The Vice Chairman: Any how, on page 7137 I asked
Admiral Kimmel this question:

"Admiral Kimmel, this worning I asked you a few ques-
tions about your conversation.vith.Gapta;n Zacharias. At
that time I did .not have before me the photas tatic copiles
of certain documents that have been presented here to the
committee with respect to Captain Zacharias, and at the
conclusion of the morning?!s session, counsel handed me
this copy which is the only one before the committee,

It is headed "Notes, Correspondence, and Reports Relating

to Pearl Harbor andEvents Leading Up To It.' And quite

a number of items are listed on the front page, but I will

-.pass on down to an item appearing asbout the middle of this

page, which I will read to you:

"¥March, 1941: Conversation with Admiral Kimmel CINCPAC®

l —- that was you -- %and his Chief of Staff, Ceptain,’ it

II
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looks 1like ‘W, W. Smith, U. S. N.!

"Admiral Kimmel: That is right.”

Then I continued reading:

"IRegarding Nomura, notifying of surprise attack on
our Fleet by Japanese in case hostilities eventuate. Detalls
of this oox;versation are' covered in a personal and confiden-
tial memo to Chief of Staff, to CINCPAC, Rear Admiral Milo
Draemel, U. S. N., for presentation to CINCPAC (Admiral
imitz) and dated March 17, 1942, copy attached.?

"Then I turn over to this copy to which he refers in
that note, I will not take time to read all of 1¢t, but_
in the fourth paragraph of this headed 'Personal and Confil-
dential Memoran dum for Admiral Draemel, March 17, 1942% I
read you as follows:

"i0nly a few people know that I had cautioned Admiral
Kimmel and Captain Smith during the course of an hour and
a half conversation withthem of the exact elvent to take
vlace on 7 December, not only as to what would happen, but
also how and when. My only error was that the Japanese
vere after four battleships, and they got five.!

"Do you recall any such statement as that, or any
information of that nature given you by Captain Zucharias?

"Admiral Kimmel: I think there is very little I can

add to my previous testimony on that subject. In the past
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few days I heard of this memorandum, and I had read that
memorandum before I testified before this committee and if
you want me td clarify any of my previous statements, I
will be pleased to do so, but I am willing to let it stand
as 1t 1s."”

Then I asked:

"Well, in questions asked you by counsel and those
which I asked you, you stated that you dld not remember --

"pdmiral Kimmel: That is correct.”

Then I asked:

"__ any conversation with Captain Zacharlas along this
line,

"admiral Kimmel: I remembered a conversation with
Captain Zacharias.”

Then I asked:

"mut I kve now tried to refresh your memory.

"pdmirel Kimmel: That i1s right.”

Then I state:

"Tf 1t is worth anything in that respect.

"sdmiral Kimmel: Yes."

Then I state:

"By reading you what appears in this memorandum pre-

pared by him, which has been presented to this committee

for whatever it may be worth.

e s B i H == ‘.H.\l Il.-'---' -
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1
h6 : "Admiral Kimmel: That is right.”
~ "Then I asked:
2 "And T am now asking you whether he said to you what
- he states there, or anything like that.
2 "Admiral Kimmel: He did not, and furthermore, I would
. have paid very little attention to any man who told me in
& ‘ March of 1941 that an attack was going to occur on the

a ‘ Pacific Fleet in Pearl Harbor on December 7, 1941."

= {0 ‘ I think that covers the pertinent point. I assume you
§ 11 are familiar with 1t.
. :E 12 The Chairman: I think it is time to adjourn.
’;" 13 Captain Zacharias: I can reply very quickly to that.
é 14 The Cheirman: Yes, if you will, We will have to
-: 15 recess in a moment.
18 Captain Zacharias: Included in that memorandum was
17 the date December 7. I have already indicated that December
18 7 is synonymous with Pearl Harbor. When you realize that
10 this memorandum was prepared after Pearl Harbor s 1V wé.s
20 referring back to an event for the benefit of Admiral : |
. 1 Draemel and Admiral Nimitz, and Admiral Kimmel is quite cor-

2 rect in saying that in March 6 1941, I did not predict some-
23 thing was going to happen on December 7th. And he 1s al:o

= correct in saying that I did not indicate that there was any
{imminence of Jananess hostilities. Evervthing I sald to him

23
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was contingent upon the development of a situation which

made hostilities between Japan and the United States
imminent. I did not predict whon.that*wﬁuld occur, but
I indicated to him clearly as to what would happen if
that situation evolved.

The Chairman: The committee will recess until 2
ofclock, and the chair understands that Justice Roberts
vill be here,

You may come back here also, Captain.

Capteain ﬁachariaa: I will be hers, sir, .

(Whereupon, at 12:10 o'clock p. m., the committee

recessed to 2:00 o'clock p. m., of the same day.)

3 — - i P v " s -
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i The Chairman: The ccmmittee will come to order.

Mr., Justice Roberts, will you be sworn?

TESTIMONY OF MR, JUSTICE OVWEN J. ROBERTS

| (sworn by the Chairman)

| Mr. Richardson: I have befcre me, Mr. Chalrman, some

I sorrespondence which 1t might be well to have extende? in the
, recerd in connecticn with the testicony of the Justice.

The first 1s a letter of December 16, 1941 to the Presi-
| dent from the Secretary of War in connection with the individu-
als who were selected to form the Comwission of which the
Justiloe wus the chalrman,

That 18 ferllowed by a letter of Januury 27, 1942, being.
a latter to Justice Roberts from the Seoretary of War with re-
_rerence to the report which had bsen prior thereto filed.

The third 1s a letter under date of January 31, 1942 from
the Justice to the Seoretury of War in aocknowledgment of the

letters.

I think probably it would be sufflclent 1f the letters
r were extended in the r=cord by the stenozruapher withecut read-

l ing then,

Senuvtor Brewster! Mr, Chalrman, I have had the privilece

of counsel showing them to me and I think tHat they are of

The Chalirman: 0h, well, they ought to be asprsad on the

|
|
ﬁ sufficient consequence to have them read,
|
r

|
|

— ey
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Jenator Brewster: I think they should be read so the

committee will be familiar with them.

0
The Chalirman: If thers 11 no objeotien counsel may read

———

them.

Mr, llurphy: I have a suggestion to make. Thay were read
wbout two weekgago at the time Senutor Ferguson asked a ques-
tlon about them. I think these wevrs among those read.

Sen.tor Brewster: These were not re.d,

The Chairmcn: The ohair dces not understand that they

werse r=ad,.

—
——

iir, MYurphy: Oh, I uee, these lette s were not reud.

The Chalrman: Without objecticn the oounsel will read

the letters into the record at this point in 8 equence,

r, Richardson: (Reading)

J "PERSONAL AND CONF IDENTIAL

Degember 16, 1941

"Dear Mr. President:

"{nox tells me that ycu would 1like our auggestions

a3 to the 1inveitligating boad this morning" --
The Chairmun: Ldt me ask counsel this question: Prior

)
?to that letter 1a thers any officlal document appointing the

!Commiaaion by the President vhich might well go in sheud of

i

Htheco 1attera’
]

|
|
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Mr. Richardson: Thies would ocome ahead of that, Mr.

Chairman.

Senator Brewster: Yes.
The Chalirman: Go ghead,
Mr, Richardson: (Reading)

"Knox tells me that you would like our sugge.tions as
to the investigating board this morning.

"1.:'My sugg~e8tion for the oivilian ho&d is Justioce
Roberts. No less a man in my opinicn should be asked
and Roberts, by his action in investigating and prosesut-

ing the Teapot Dome scandal and in denlding the Blaock

- Tom case mo"e recesntly, has an outstanding reputation

among our people for gettinz down tothe bottom of a Batu-

al qituation. I think hls appointment would onmmana the
confidence of the whole country. I believe Knox agrees

with nme. !?

"2, For the War Department representatives I sug-

T —

gest Major General Frank R. MoCoy, Retired, and Brigadier
Generel Joseph T. MoNarney of the Air Corps. |

"a. McCoy you know personally. He has the most
outetanding record of any man in the Army for such an
appeintment, reculring as it does breadth of view, super-
lative character, and wide similezr experience. As a mem-

ber of the Lytton Commission which investigated the
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Japanese in Manchuria, he won a vary high reputation
apong all nations involvad for his balance and taot, It
was due to him more than any other member that the report
of th:.t Commission was unanimous.

"b, MoNarney I recommend a8 the best alr man we
have for that purpese, I think ther~ must be an ailr man
on the bo.rd becauss the duties and aileged derelliotions
were in air proteotion. The fight was an alr fight. We
have no retired officers of the Air Corps f1t f or this
gssignment, but MoNarney has a reputation which commands
the respect of evarybody. As ycu knew, he was C!''lef of
Staff for Chaney in London, wae on the recent Staff con-
ferences with the British, went to Moacow, and 18 f amil-
iar with British technique in respeot to alr defense.
Marshall and I think he is the most competent man we have
at the present time on air and ground Jjoint requirements.

"Marshall and T unite on all the foregoling sugges-
tions after wvery careful consideratlion by e ach of us,

"Most oconfidentially we are e=2nding to Hawall two
men to relieve Short &nd Martin, the present Arny Come
mander and Air Commander. Lieutenant General Tmmons,
our pressnt Air Combat Commander, will relieve Short.

Brigadier General Tinker will relleve Martin., They are

starting at once and I think nothing should be sald about
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|
|

, out to Hawall., They were two of the best men we had and

L]
"

1t untll they ar-ive to tuke command. As ycu know, we

have had a sad and serious blow in this mattaer. Major

General Dargue and Colonel Bundy, who have been missing

8ince the storm of last Friday night, were on their way

S——

” w2 had exp~ct2d to us2 Dargue to reliave one of the men

| out theT‘e 0

"Falthf:1lly yours,
| HENRY L. STIMSON,

Secretary of Var."

| Thls 18 addressed to?

"The President,

| The Whilte Housse.

"N¥ opinion ie that the houseocleaning which I de-

soribe in the laet paragraph should be synchronized with

& 8imllar houseslsaning in the Naval Command, and all

announced &t the same timeo."

F This 18 followed by a letter of Januery 27, 1942 from the

ésecretary of War to Justlice Roberts. (Rsading)

!
5 "My dezr Justize Poberte:

mirable job I think that you and your colleagues have done

in your 4ifficult task of drawing the renort on the dig-

J
‘i "This 18 Just & hasty line to tell you what an ad-
aster at Pearl Harbor,

i

|

-
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| T think i1t 18 a masterplece of candlid and aocurate

| statement based upon most careful study and analysls of

% a diffioult factual situation. OCne of the best fealures
i of 1t has been your trectment of certaln underlyling ele~
i ments which could not be fully embrdled in the reorrt

| without ziving assistance to the enemy.

| “Your fuil opinion on some of these lst ter polnte
geens to me so important that I hope 1t wlll be given

to the President and others of uqﬁhﬁ are concerned in the
dafense of the country, in s manner which can be used
without going %o the enemy. These are the typa of things
J that I intended to suggest to You in my preliminary talk
with ycu before you left for Pearl Harbor,

"Paithfully ycurs,

"HENRY L. STIMSON,"
And addressed to: “"Honorable Owen J. Roberts,

United States Supreme Court,

Washington, D,C."

| That is followed by a letter of January 31, 1942 from
i
 Justince Roberts to the Secretary of War, (Reading)

r

| "My dear br., Seoretery:

'
1

|

"I am greatly indebted to ycu for ycur letter of

January Z7th with respect to the Pearl Harbor report.

g It was good of you to t:ke the time from your manifold
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duties to write me about it.

-

"Yours sincerely,

"OWELN J. ROBZRTS,"

Addressed to:

"Hon, Henry L. Stimscn,

"Secretary of War,

"“Munitions Building,

"Washington, D.C."

re Murphy: Mr. Chairman, does the record show the

Roberts.

The Chairman:

X

o il 1:‘..:" r}'
L o

date of the first two letters?
Mr, nichardsen: Yes.

Mr, Murphy: It does? All right.

T L ad T e e 5 oo AR et <= S R T T R T O AR s
A= BV A P % R s e (RS 5 T O SRR

Proceed with the examinaticn of Justioce
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genator Ferguson: Mr. Chalrman, I wish those would
remain or be gotten back.

The Reporter: They will be back in & half-hour.

The Chairmen: Proceed, Mr. Richardson.

Mr. Richardson: f-lr. Justice, you were the Chairman ol
what is known as the Roberts Commission in connection with
the investigation of Pearil Harbor?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Yes, 8ir.

Mr. Richardson: When was that Commission sworn 1in?

Mr. Justice Roberts: I should think the 18th or 19th
~? December. I can give you the exact date from the minutes.
We swore the recorder and then he swore the members of the
Commission.

fir. Richardson: How soon after that before the Commis-
sion began to function?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Tomediately. The very morning
that it was organized.

Mr. Richardson: Will you gilve us & running resume
of the time the Commission did function here and then later
upon your arrival at Hawall?

Mr. Justice Roberts: We cell in the higher command
of the Army and Navy and asked them to produce the war plans,
maps, orders, and every document that could have & bea.ring

~sn the situation at Pearl Harbor. We oxamined those and had




D .0 ‘NOLDNIHSYM "INVd ¥ QHYM

10

11

12

13

14

17

20

23

24

8787
Witness Roberts Questions by: Mr. Richardson

the officers explain them and their bearing to us.

I might say at that time we had not decided how we
vould take testimony, and we had no stenographer. We had
2. secretary wvho was a stenograpgher who made notes on the
topics on which these people spoke, and we each made notes
for ourselves of things which we thought important and
that wve desired to investigate.

General Marshall and Admiral sStark were present and
gave us an outline of the whole transaction from their
noints of view. We asked whether we should retain certain
code telegrams, and what not, and they told us that coples
of them would be found at Pearl Harbor, and we decided not
to take those into our possessi;m at that time but to get
them when we had stenographic service at Pearl Harbor.

As the result of the conference and testimony of these
zentlemen, who were not under oath but were upon honor to
zive us all they had, we then formed a plan of going to
Pearl Harbor where copies of practically every document they
vroduced would be found and we could proceed more formally
with the stenographer.

We made arrahgements immediately 'for stenographic ser-
vice by stenographers known in Washington, and known to

me personally to be reputable, because we d4id not know what

kind of stenographic service we could depend on in Pearl

ilsg @ B Uy TS DRI W ™ By N pra— | PR — T . .. e . = e ¥ _——
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Harbor, and we took those gentlemen with us. I think

they arrived on Oshu on the 22nd -- I may be wWrong about
the date -- about 6:00 olclock in the morning, and we
started our sessilon at 9:30 on thﬁ.’c morning at Fort Shafter
yith a stenographer pfeaent , end wve called for our first
witness, after we called for the production of a lot of

Gocuments, General 3hort.

M». Richardson: From that time on, when the Commission
functiloned, it was by question and answer to witnesses who
had first been duly sworn?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Yes. I might say that Congress
nassed an Act gilving us the right to subpoena wltnesses and
syeer them, and that was at our request.

Mr. Richardson: Was any witness proposed who was
not given an opportunity to be heard?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Certainly not.

Mr. Richardson: How were your proceedings conducted
vith respect to their being open or otherwise?

Mr. Just'icﬁe Roberits: They were closed. Every witness
wes a.sked to observe secrecy, that is to say, not to disclose

vhat went on in the room.

of course the reason for that was what this committee

noy knows, that there were questions of broken codes. Ve

vere informed thet the Army and Navy vere getting invaluable

' - 4 - -
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information every day; that the Japanese did not realize
that their codes were broken, and mdeéd the Navy was rather
chary about even telling us about the thing for fear there
nnight be some leak from our Commlission.

of course if we held open hearings there was a chance
we might do a great damage to our forces, our military
program.

Mr. Richardson: When did you complete your duties
there, approximately?

Mr. Justice Roberts: I have got it all in the minutes,
end you have the minutes, I think, so when I speak I do not
speak against the minmutes. 1t was around the 18th of
January, 1 suppose.

Mr. Richardson: Then you returned to Washington?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Yes, we came to San Francisco,
and in order not to lose any time we came back by Pullman
from San Francisco, and we had a drawing room in which we
cculd discuss the facts, and as to facis which were of
recaord and as to which there was no doubt we could start to
prepare findings, which we d4id on the train.

lir. Richardson: Approximately how long after you re-

turned vere your findings oonplet‘ed?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Apgain I do not speak by the record.

Tt 18 all here, You can get 1t day by day. But I should
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think something over a week.

2 |
2 The Chairmen: The report shows that they held meetings

2 on the 16th, 17th, 18th, 19th, 20th, 21st, 22nd and 23rd.

. Mr. Justice Roberts: That is right.

o The Cheirman: And the report is dated the 23rd of
' 7 January.

2 Mr. Justice Roberts: That is right.

3 Mr. Rioha.rdaon‘- Then upon your return to Washington

'0 you took no more testimony?

% % Mr. Justice Roberts: Yes, we did. We took some testi-
. ;’é ia mony on some matters that were still doubtful in our minds, ,
; T3 and wve did not attempt to make findings on those particular
3 14 points until we had taken testimony from General Marshall, |
:: '8 Admiral Stark and several others. |
X Mr. Richardson: I note, Mr. Justice, in the report
= that your Commission eventually made, there are 19 in number ;'
= of what is referred to as the findings of fact. |
5 I also note in ?he minutes of your Commission, under
0 date of January 21, 1942, the fol;l.owing language :
51 "At 3:00 otclock p.m. the S_eoreta.ry of the Navy,
’ o having been shown certain proposed findings of fact, stated
~ that he suggested no changes for the safeguarding of the
= national interest in any of the statements except one, in

25 Finding No. 20. This was then differently phrased. At

R T UL TR —
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%:30 p.m. Brigadier General Gerow, designated the Chief of
Staff, after examining the same findings for the same
purpose stated to the recorder that he found no oha.nges to
suggest, and the recorder so 1nformed‘th9 Commission.”

T would be obliged if you would glve us some explana-
tion with respect to the elimination of what must have been
originally Finding No. 20 in connection with your report.

Mr. Justice Roberts: There wasnit any elimination.
When we started to make findings, every member of the
Cormission was drawing findings to represent his view of
scertain facts. Then we took the different drafts of the
members and compered them, and corrected them, and agreed
on a statement.

. In order to have that done accurately, I asked the
Comnissioners in.making findings, to make a short finding
for each specific fact. When we hed finally agreed on
the findings there were over 70 of them, numbered from 1l
to T70. Tl-m'y were agreed upon. Those were the ones that
were shown to the Secretary of the Navy and Secretary of

war.
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Witness Roberts

When we came to draft our report for submission to

the President, every one of the Commission but myself sald

70 short paragraphs in it, cut apart, and they said 1t

3
4 \ that 1t was a disjointed sort of thing, because it had

8
- would be a great deal better to put the findings in longer
7 paragraphs together.
a We did that, and we finally condensed those 70 para-
o graphs into 19, without changing a word in them. If you
¢ 10 4111 look at the findings, you will see that No. 1 consists
E 1 of two paragraphs. Those were originally numbered separately.
. !E_ 12 | The ne:'t one consists of two paragraphs which were
; 13 originally numbered separately. The third one does not.
g 14 I The fourth congists of three paragraphs that had separate
o

We took the findings that dealt with a particular altua-

15 i numbers, and 8o on.
16 l

7 il tion md put them under one caption with paragraphs instead
i of having them numbered straight through.
19 As to finding No. 20, I think I know what 1t was. It

20 48 at the bottom of page 6 of the printed report. That

' ¥ £inding is now in e paragraph starting "November o4, 1941,"
22 It dealt with & message from the Navy. In making up a state-
23 ment on these messages we garbled them. We were told if we
24 had trenslated them accurately, thé either the Germans or

= the Japanese, who had taken off the code messages, might
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Witness Roberts

When we came to draft our feport for submission to
the President, every one of the Commission but myself sald
that it was a disjointed sort of thing, becauQQ it had
70 short paragfﬁphs in 1t, cut apart, and they sald 1t
would be a great deal better to put the findings in longer
paragraphs together.

We did that, and we finally condensed those 70 para-
graphs into 19, without changing a word in them, If you
w111 look at the findings, you will see that No. 1 consists
of two paragraphs. Those were originally numbered separately.

The ne::t one consists of two paragraphs which were
originally numbered separately. The third one does not.

The fourth consists of three paragraphs that had separate
numbers, and so on.

We took the findings that dealt with a particular sltusa-
t;ion od put them under one caption with paragraphs instead
of having them numbered straight through.

As to finding No. 20, I think I know what it was. It
18 at the bottom of page 6 of the printed report. That
£inding is now in a paragraph starting "November 24, 1941."
It dealt with a message from the Navy. In making up a state-
ment on these messages we garbled them, We were told 1f we

had translated them accurately, thd either the Germans or

the Japanese, who had taken off the code messages might
s
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Witness Roberts Questions by: Mr. Richardson
take the translation and break our code, and we should
paraphase them, and Secretary Knox thought our paraphrase
perhaps was not plain enough to deceive the Japanese, and
he suggested a slight change in verblage, and we made 1t.

Mr. Richardson: Thon; as & matter of fact, Mr.
Justice, nothing in your findings was deleted, or eliminated
because of the objection of anyone outside of the Commis-
sion?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Certainly not, except, as I say,
Secretary Knox called attention to one finding, and sald
that might give some information, that we ought to phrase
it somewhat differently, and we did.

Mr. Richardson: But the factual result of the rephras-
ing was the same as the original phrasing?

Min Justice Roberts: Absolutely.

Mr. Richardson: Now were your Commission unanimous in
approving each of the findings which.you.ropﬁrted?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Certainly.

Mr. R;chardsonj And was your Commission unanimous in
the report which you filed on those findihga?

Mr. Justice Roberts: It was.

Mr. Richardson: Now, when that report was made, how

vas it signed?
Mr. Justice Roberts: Signed by all the Commission,

. S—
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h3 &8 in duplicate.
. 4 Mr, Richardson: And each Commissioner had a signed _
A copy of the report? 5
g Mr. Justice Roberts: No, sir. When we decided to
- ! make this change in the findingﬁ of fact, to put thom 1n
’ ‘ long paregraphs, thet was pretty late. I think it might
al have beem Thursdsy afternoon or Friday morning, and our
Ard Secretary told us that he could get the report finished
S 25 %l quicker, if he éid not have to meke seven copies, wlth six
% s %} carbons, sSo he made‘the first and two carbons;that made
. ; 12 1‘ it less difficult to put into the machine for each page,
% ‘e | and we signed two duplicates. That is one, the ribbon ,
g ‘e ! cOopy, and one carbon.
ﬁ '8 | I kept this one copy (indicating) as my copy, the | ,
. l third carbon. If you will look at the minutes, you will
T see the Commlssioner instructing the secretary to make one I
¥ copy from this to each of the other commissioners, that
g2 is to make four from this. So far as I know, the four
55 were made, and so far as I know, each Commissioner has a
= copy. I do not bellieve there was any shuffling around.
‘ ' . ’ I think that is the copy that the minutes said I was to
ae have.
2a Mr. Richardson: And that copy was an exact copy of
o the report as signed?
' X

S T N e : p P g — e
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hi - Mr. Justice Roberts: Absolutely. It is a carbon
3 copy of the ribbon copy.
4 Mr. Richardson: Now, following the signing of your
5 report, did you have some conference with the President
e with reference to that report?
7 ' Mr. Justice Roberts: Yes. I covered that in my letter.
: - Mr. Richardson: Would you mind going over it again,

2 so your testimony can be complete here on that point?

23 The Commission weited until Migs Tully came back and

B0 Mr. Justice Roberts: I do not know whether I can state
? 11 what 1s in the letter with accuracy or not. I think I can. 3
. ,E 12 That report was finished around 2:30 on Friday after-
- ; 13 | noon, December 23. In the presence of the Commissioners,
3 14 I I called the White House, got Miss Tully on the phone, told
: 15 her the report would be ready late that afternoon, was
168 practlcally ready, and would be ready within an hour or
17 80, and I should like to know whether the President wished
18 it sent by the recorder under cover or whetherhe wished
19 the Commission to wait on him in a body and present it,
20 or whether he wanted myself, as the Chairman, to present
. 21 it.
' 22 Miss Tully told me that the President was in a Cobinet
23 meeting and could not reach him, but when he came out she
24 would communicate \tith me.,
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said the President had come out of the Cabinet meeting,
that he was very tired, and he did not want the report
presented that afternoon; that he wanted it presented by
me as Chairman of the Commission in person, and he would
see me for that purpose at 11 o'clock the next morning.

Mr. Richardson: What date or what month was the 24th?

Mr. Justice Roberts: January 24, Saturday.

Mr. Richardson: Your earlier remark was December 23.
That should have been Januay?

Mr,., Justice Roberts: Should have been.Janhary, certainly.

So I called at the White House on the morning of
January éh at 11 o'clock, saw the President in his study
on the 2nd floor. He was at his desk., I handed him an
envelops containing these two duplicate reports. He opened
it, and then started to read 1t.

I sat there and he read it line by line, and so far
as I could make out he read every word of it, carried his
finger on the pages.

I was there over two hours.

When he concluded reading 1t, he turned to me and
said, "Is there anything in this report that might give
our enemies information they ought not to have?" Or

words to that effect. I said, "No, sir, I cleared that

with the Secretary of War and Secretary of the Navy,
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becaﬁse‘we didn't want to put anything in here that might

endanger the national defense."

Then he said, "I do not see why I should not give
this report to the public in full."

I said, "It would be a great satisfaction to the
Commission if you did that, sir," or "it would please the
Commission if you did that," or words to that effect.

He rang the bell, and Mr, McIntyre came in. He threw
this whole thing across the table, as I remember it, both
copies, and envelope, and said, "Mac, give that to the
Sunday papers in full," and Mr. McIntyre said, '"Well I
will have to put it in the mimeographing room, in the
press room."

You see, it was then one o'clock and he tookfit and
started to go away, and then he turnéd around and sald,
"Don't you want to say something about the work of the

Commission, Mr. President?"

The President said, "Oh, yes," and then he said something

about he was greatly indebted to the Commission for their

prompt report, something of that kind, and Mr. McIntyre

~turned and went away. I have never seen the report from

that day to thils,

HMr. Richardson: You have had a copy, this carbon copy?

Mr, Justice Roberts: That has been.in.my files
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Mr. Richardson: That has also been compared, has 1t,
with this Senate document No. 1597

Mr. Justice Roberts: Yes.

Mr. Richardson: And that also is a correct copy of
the report?

Mr. Justice Roberts: Well, I found one typographical
error in the Senate Report, in Finding 15, whereit should
read "distant air raid reconnaissance," it reads "distinct
air raid reconnaissance." There can be no mistake as to
vhat 1s meant, because ths word "distant" appears twice
again in the same paragraph. That is at the top of page
12, That is evidently a printer's error, That is the only
thing I can find.

Mr. Richardson: I have no further questions, Mr.
Chairman.

The Chairman: I do not care to inquire of the Justice.

Congressman Cooper.

Mr, Justice Roberts: Iwould like to say thls; 'When
we made these findings into larger paragraphs, we made two

or three changes. You will note up at the top of page 8,

_at the end of the paragraph there, "Referred to in the

next succeeding paragraph.”

Well, as that paragraph had been put into a finding
we had to change the words "next succeeding finding" to
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Witness Roberts

"paragraph,” because they were all separate .

The same thing occurs in one or two other places
vherever we speak of the "next succeeding paragraph.”
That originally read "finding" but when we put them in
one finding, we changed 1it.

The Chairman: I will ask just one question.

I gather from your statement there was never any
finding 20 that was in any way eliminated, but you con-
solidated some 70-odd findings into 19 findings; is that
correct?

Mr. Justice Roberts: That is correct.

The Chairmaen: At no time during your consideration
vas there any finding No. 20 that was subsequentlyeliminated?

Mr. Justice Roberts: No, sir. There is one other
thing.

At the bery last moment, and after we had heard from
the Secretaries of War and Navy, we made a slight change
in Finding 16, what is now the 4th paragraph of that finding.

In reading over the thing when it was finally in type;
there \raa. g word or two in there which I thought indicated
that the Na.vy might have broken the Japanese navy code
after December 7, and I eliminated, with the consent of the

other two commissioners, two or three words, that I thought

might indicate that the Nevy had broken the Jepanese code.
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That was the Japanese naval code, and not this other code

. that has been talked about.

The Chairman: That elimination was made with the .

approval of ell of the Commissioners?
Mr. Justice Roberts: Yes.

The Chalirman: As a matter of fact, the whole report
vas a tentatlve draft which was subseai ently reduced in
form to the 19 findings which appear here in this official
cocument?

Mr., Justice Roberts: ' That is correct.




8801

Shack (7) pm
8
;ﬁw Witness Roberts Questions by: The Vice Chairman
Al-1 )
' 2 The Chairman: Congressman COOpoi'.
3 The Vice Chairman: Mr. Justice, there never was any

s intention of conducting any kind of court proceeding or

5 trial,or anything of that kind?

- Mr. Justice Roberts: No, sir.

7 The Vice Chairman: You vwere just making an investipa-

8 tion, wvere you?

o Mr. Justice Robertﬁ: Yes, sir. This seemed to me &
¢ 10 preliminary investigation, like a grand jury investigationm,
§ 11 and I did not think, for our report, that was to be taken

. !E_ 12 as precluding every ane of the men menticned in it from
; 13 a defense before his peers.
g 14 In other words, you could not conduct a proceeding
;: 15 without cross-examination and without publicity and call
18 it a trial. It was not a trial.
Larry 17
follows
18
19
20
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follows Witness Roberts | Questions by: The Vice Chlim
shack 2:35 Senator Lucas
Al~1l 1
s The Vice Chairman: It was just an investigation?
. 3 Mr. Justice Roberts: It was an investigation and it
A was the formation of a judgment to be handed to the President.
3 We didn't now whether the President would publish it or
3 wvhat he would do with 1it.
- The Vice Chairman: That 1s all.
z The Chairman: Senator George.
~ Senator George: No questlons.
. 10 The Chairman: Congressman Clark is not here. Senator
§ 11 Lucas.
. ; 12 Senator Lucas: Mr. Justice, after the President gave
g 13 the two copies to Secretary McIntyre with instructions to
3 14 give it to the press, do you recall seeing that report in
t 18 the press the following Sunday?
< Mr. Justice Roberts: At that time I vas on the Supreme
17 Court and the following Monday mimeographed copies of this
18 press release were sent up to the press room of the JSupreme
” Court and Mr. Potter brought me up one. I didn't compare
20 it line for line with our report but I had the report
4 21 fully in mind. I read it through and 1t was obviously com-
. 22 plete.
=3 senator Lucas: After you read the report through you
24 ‘|| S&v no changes or there was nothing in the report that

28 || called to vour attertion £nv chanses from what you had
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presented to the President on the Saturday before?

Mr. Justice Roberts: That is correct, sir. I also
saw the full report published in the New York Times on
Sunday and reed it with some care to see if it was camplete
and to my eye it vas complete. There again I did not com-
pare it line for line with my typewritten copy. Of course,
with this (indicating printed copy) I took the trouble to
compare it paragraph by paragraph -- not line by line -~ and
it was complete.

Senator Lucas: That 1s all.

The Chairman: Congressman Murphy.

Mr. Murphy: Mr. Justice, when Admiral Kimmel was

 testifying before us he made some reference to the type

!
!
1
t

.
ti
.
L]

|

of stenographic work done &t Pearl Harbor. As I read the
record that has been pgiven to us there was first several
I;ages reporting the questions and answers as between the
Commission and The wiltness. Thereafter there were corrections
suggested and as we have been gilven it they are interlined
following each particular page that would be corrlected.

Then after that was done, as I understand it Admiral
Kinnnél presented his version of the testimony. I mean,
something that was prepared by him and which he wanted the

Commission to substitute for that which the stenographer had

actually reported. As T understand it, then the Commission




